
Audit and Accounts Committee  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Audit and Accounts Committee to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 29 September 2021 

 
TIME:  2.00 pm 

 
VENUE: The Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 

5DA. 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 

2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC FOR FACE TO 

FACE MEETINGS FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2021 

Please see the attached guidance document on the arrangements for 

the return to face to face meetings. This guidance includes 
information about the venue, the control measures in place, COVID19 

lateral flow tests and travel options. 
 

 

1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   The Committee is asked to consider whether it agrees to the 

inclusion of the items  listed in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda.  

 

 

3   Declarations of Interest.  

 

 

4   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the previous 

meeting.  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 30th July 2021. 

 

(Pages 1 - 10) 

5   Matters Arising  

 

 

6   Internal Audit Charter  
 

Head of Internal Audit (Simon Bleckly) 
 

(Pages 11 - 26) 

7   Internal Audit Quality and Improvement Programme  
 

Head of Internal Audit (Simon Bleckly) 

(Pages 27 - 42) 

Public Document Pack



 

 
8   RIPA Annual Report  

 

Interim City Solicitor (Dave Wilcock) 
 

(Pages 43 - 46) 

9   External Auditors Update  
 

SCC Audit Progress Report - Mazars 
 

(Pages 47 - 58) 

10   Government Response to the Redmond Review  

 

Head of Internal Audit (Simon Bleckly) 

 

(Pages 59 - 66) 

11   Work Programme  

 
(Pages 67 - 70) 

12   URGENT BUSINESS - PART 1  

 

 

13   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 

The officers consider that the following items contain exempt 

information as provided for in the Local Government Access to 
Information Act and that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 Members are recommended to agree the necessary 
resolutions excluding the public from the meeting during consideration 

of this item. At the time this agenda is published no representations 
have been that this part of the meeting should be open to the public. 
 

 

14   URGENT BUSINESS - PART 2  

 

 

15   Date of Next Meeting  

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811 
Liz Wright E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk 



Audit and Accounts Committee 
Conducted as a face-to-face meeting in public at 100 Embankment, Cathedral 

Approach, Salford. 

Date: 30 July 2021 

Meeting commenced: 10:07a.m. 

Meeting ended: 11:39a.m. 

Present in Person: 

Councillors:  Robin Garrido (in the chair), Gina Reynolds and Alex Shama. 

Officers:  

Chris Hesketh  Head of Financial Management 

Carol Eddleston  Senior Democratic Services Advisor 

In Attendance via MS Teams: 

Simon Bleckly  Head of Internal Audit 

Joanne Hardman  Chief Finance Officer 

Shoaib Mohammad  Assistant Director – Technical Services 

Jacquie Russell  Assistant Director – Strategy and Performance 

Tony Thompstone  Strategic Finance Manager 

Karen Murray  External Auditor Mazars 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of committee members Councillors 

Roger Jones, Mike Pevitt, Phil Tresadern & Ray Walker, co-opted members Edoardo 

Bucci & Vittoria Bugana, Interim City Solicitor David Wilcock and Lead Member for 

Finance & Support Services Councillor Bill Hinds. 

2. Inclusion of the Items Listed on the Agenda 

RESOLVED, THAT: that the items included on Part 1 of the agenda be approved for 

discussion and it be noted that there were no items of business in Part 2. 

3. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

4. Minutes of the Last Meeting 

RESOLVED, THAT: the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2021 be approved 

as a true and correct record. 

5. Matters Arising 

Minute 11 b Member Training: It was confirmed that a remote training session would 

be arranged in the second half of August for members who had been unable to 

attend the session held on 7th July 2021. Councillor Robin Garrido urged members to 

attend as, although not mandatory, the training was invaluable in helping members 

to understand the strategies, policies & documents within the committee’s remit and 

their role in receiving, scrutinizing and approving them.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



6. Code of Corporate Governance and Draft Annual Governance Statement 

The Head of Internal Audit introduced the two items, explaining that the Code of 

Corporate Governance was a public document which detailed the framework and 

arrangements that the Council had in place to ensure its corporate governance 

arrangements were legally compliant, transparent and appropriate. The Annual 

Governance Statement was effectively a review of the effectiveness of the 

framework and arrangements over the 12-month period in scope. Consequently, the 

two documents were very similar and it made sense to present them together.  

He highlighted the following: 

- Corporate governance was about how the Council ensured it was doing the right 

things, in the right way, for the right people, at the right time, in an inclusive, 

open, honest and accountable manner. 

- In line with the seven principles of good governance identified by the Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local 

Authority Chief Executives & Senior Managers (SOLACE), the Code identified the 

internal controls that the Council had developed to ensure good governance. 

- The Code was reviewed annually and any weaknesses or opportunities for 

continuous improvement identified were fed into the Annual Governance 

Statement in the form of an action plan which would be kept under review by the 

internal Corporate Governance Group throughout the year. 

- The Code had been updated to reflect the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, 

identifying changes that had resulted from the pandemic and the impact of the 

effectiveness of the arrangements in place. 

- The Annual Governance Statement took account of changes to structures, 

governance procedures, policies and corporate objectives that had occurred 

since the last update and looked at issues facing the Council in the coming 

financial year, including the ongoing response to COVID-19 and arrangements 

for returning to business as usual. 

- Sources of assurance for the review of the effectiveness of the framework and 

arrangements included: Member scrutiny in this committee and the overview and 

scrutiny panels, Corporate Management Team, Internal Audit, internal Corporate 

Governance Group, External Audit and feedback and findings from any external 

inspections. 

- The Draft Annual Governance Statement had been submitted to External Audit 

along with the draft Statement of Accounts and any changes requested by 

members could be incorporated up until the Statement of Accounts was agreed in 

September. 

In conclusion the Head of Internal Audit believed that the Council had a sound 

system of internal control in place to support the achievement of the Council’s 

objectives throughout the year. 

The chair thanked the Head of Internal Audit for presenting what he considered to be 

amongst the most important of the Council’s documents and invited questions and 

comments from the members present: 

Page 2



- In response to a question from Councillor Gina Reynolds, the Assistant Director 

Strategy and Performance explained that she was the Senior Information Risk 

Owner (SIRO) for the Council as a whole and that Debbie McCarron was the 

Council’s Data Protection Officer. 

- In response to a question from Councillor Shama about the measures that were 

in place to mitigate against the financial, governance, legal and reputational risks 

of the Council failing to maintain robust internal controls and complying with 

legislation and regulations, the Assistant Director Strategy and Performance 

explained that service and strategic risk registers were fundamental to how the 

Council assessed, monitored and reported risks and their mitigations. 

- Councillor Gina Reynolds noted the references to the Workforce Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy in both the Code and the draft AGS and asked for reference 

to added to the Health & Wellbeing Steering Group which was chaired by 

Councillor Barbara Bentham. 

- Councillor Gina Reynolds queried the reference in the Draft Annual Governance 

Statement to an Adult Social Care Commissioning Group chaired by the Director 

of Adult Social Care. 

[Clerk’s note: it has subsequently been confirmed that this reference is correct. The 

ASCCG has been chaired by Charlotte Ramsden in her capacity as Director of Adult 

Social Services since the creation of the SCO. It is her assurance meeting with the 

Council’s Assistant Directors for Integrated Commissioning and SCO (ASC) directors 

& heads of service].  

RESOLVED, THAT: 

1. Subject to the comments above, the updated Code of Corporate Governance be 

approved, and 

2. Subject to the comments above, and to any further requests from members for 

changes or additions following the meeting, the Draft Annual Governance 

Statement be approved. 

 

7. Draft Statement of Accounts 

The chair opened this item by saying that circulation of the draft was the start of the 

process leading ultimately to the approval of the Statement of Accounts. Members 

now had an opportunity to raise any questions on the draft statement between this 

meeting and the end of September when the final version was presented to the 

committee for approval. 

The Chief Finance Officer was pleased to confirm that the council had met the 

deadline for submission to the External Auditors. She took the opportunity to express 

her thanks to the team who had worked extremely hard to compile the draft 

statement by the deadline in more challenging times than ever. She acknowledged 

that the accounts were lengthy and complex, but she informed the meeting that she 

and Finance colleagues were available to talk through any queries that members 

might have.  

Page 3



The Head of Financial Management said he hoped that any changes to the audited 

statement which came before committee in September would be only presentational 

in nature rather than material.  

He highlighted the following from the draft statement: 

- Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement [page 131 of the pack, page 

37 of the statement itself] – essentially the profit and loss statement showing the 

accounting cost of providing services 

- Movement in reserves statement [page 133 of the pack, page 39 of the 

statement] – important for financial resilience issues 

- Balance Sheet [page 136 of the pack, page 42 of the statement] – illustrated the 

net worth of the council in terms of assets and how they were backed up by 

reserves 

- Cash flow statement [page 137 of the pack, page 43 of the statement] – showed 

changes in cash and cash equivalents and reconciled back to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

- Notes to the accounts [page 138 of pack, page 44 of the statement] – provided 

extra detail on the main statements, exemplifying where appropriate 

- Notes [from page 139 of pack, page 45 of the statement] which may be of 

particular interest to members included: 

o Note 5 – Assumptions about the future & other major sources of estimation 

uncertainty 

o Note 10 – Movements in earmarked reserves 

o Note 24 – Usable reserves 

o Note 25 – Unusable reserves 

o Note 34 – Members’ allowances 

o Note 35 – Officers’ remuneration 

o Note 46 – Defined benefit pension schemes 

The draft statement would shortly be open for public inspection on the Council’s 

website and members of the public could ask questions directly of the External 

Auditors. Council officers would willingly assist members of the public in 

understanding the accounts and in answering any questions they and elected 

members had. 

The chair thanked the Chief Finance Officer and the Head of Financial Management 

for their overview of the draft statement and acknowledged that it would be difficult 

for members to ask detailed questions at this stage as the draft had been finalised 

only the previous evening. He endorsed the Chief Finance Officer’s comments about 

the difficulty, and the enormity, of the task given the prevailing circumstances and 

high expenditure levels over the last 12 months and spoke of his pride in what 

officers had achieved. On behalf of the committee he thanked all those involved, 

particularly the Strategic Finance Manager and his team, the Head of Financial 

Management and the Chief Finance Officer. He invited questions and comments 

from the members present. 

Page 4



- In response to a question from Councillor Shama about trends, the gap in income 

and expenditure and adequacy of reserves, the Head of Financial Management 

confirmed that: 

o As part of the accounting process officers would pick out and explain 

where and why figures had moved as against the previous financial year, 

and this was an area that the External Auditors would question such 

movements. Additionally, but not necessarily part of the accounting 

process, officers conducted some trend analysis from time to time to look 

at how figures had moved over time, and how they compared with other 

authorities around the country in terms of income an expenditure and 

performance. As local government funding changed dramatically over time 

it was more difficult to compare figures historically.  

o The Council had a statutory responsibility to set a balanced budget and did 

so in February / March of each year. Looking at the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement would suggest that the budget was in 

deficit because it did not reflect council tax and business rates. Using 

illustrative figures, gross expenditure was around £600m-£700m. This was 

offset by a big element of income within services such as sales, fees and 

charges income or commercial income, specific income which went direct 

to services of around £400m-£500m. The remaining gap of £100m-£200m 

would then be met from council tax and business rates. Throughout the 

financial year there would be monitoring of expenditure and income 

against the budget which was presented through service management 

teams, CMT, Cabinet and Overview & Scrutiny Board. Towards the end of 

the financial year a provisional financial outturn would be produced and, to 

ensure that the budget was balanced at the end of the year, there may 

need to be an adjustment of the reserves. 

o The Council had a General Fund Reserve of about £13m on a risk 

assessed basis, set aside to meet general unexpected events for the 

Council. The CFO was required to measure the level of reserves and give 

a banding from a minimal required level of reserves to a desired level of 

reserves. The Council’s £13m was above the minimum level required and 

allowed the accounts to be produced on a ‘going concern’ basis. 

o The Council also had a range of earmarked reserves greater in value than 

the General Fund Reserves. These were typically risk assessed to identify 

a forthcoming risk, e.g., a risk in government funding such as reset of 

business rates or e.g., as part of the GM 100% Business Rates Pilot 

Salford currently retained 100% of its business rates but there was a 

possibility that this would not always be the case. Similarly, there were 

reserves set aside should the national funding formula for Revenue 

Support Grant be lower and if the risk share agreement with the CCG for 

the Integrated Fund were to kick in for Adults’ Social Care and Children’s 

Social Care. Whilst a higher level of reserves would always be welcome, 

the level of reserves the Council had had been risk assessed and was 

adequate for the risks were known and an element of unexpected risks 

that might arise in the future. 

Page 5



o The Council had effective Treasury Management arrangements in place to 

ensure it managed its cash properly for some of the risks that were being 

managed within the finance function. 

- In response to an observation from the chair, the Head of Financial Management 

confirmed that as part of the budget process the level of reserves was considered 

alongside any savings that had to be made, and a smoothing reserve was used 

to cushion the impact of council tax. 

- In response to a question from the chair about a breakdown of income against 

expenditure for large assets such as 100 Embankment and 2 New Bailey, the 

Head of Financial Management confirmed that there was a note in the statement 

about PFI and similar assets that gave quite a bit of detail about this kind of 

transaction over time. 

RESOLVED, THAT: 

1. The Draft Statement of Accounts be noted, 

2. All those involved in their preparation be thanked for their hard work in 

particularly challenging circumstances, and 

3. Any further questions from members on the draft statement be directed to: 

Tony.Thompstone@salford.gov.uk or  

Chris.Hesketh@salford.gov.uk or  

Joanne.Hardman@salford.gov.uk 

 

8. Update on the Transition of Services from Urban Vision to Salford City 

Council 

The Assistant Director Technical Services presented the third update to the 

committee on the transition of Urban Vision to the Council from 1 February 2020, 

since which time there had been an enormous amount of activity. The transition 

programme had now closed following a smooth and seamless transition with 

minimum disruption to staff and customers. 

 

He highlighted the following: 

- A review of how back-office services were delivered was now underway to 

identify potential areas for improvement. This included working with Data 

Analysts to identify opportunities for a better digital experience for customers and 

further integration of standalone systems. 

- A Technical Services Framework to the value of £40m was currently being 

procured for a number of highways operations and it was expected that 

contractors would be appointed under a range of lots by early autumn. 

- Recruitment to a number of management and technical vacancies was ongoing 

but challenging, particularly given the salary differentials between local 

government and the private sector, and between Salford City Council and other 

local authorities in the region.  

- Difficulties in filling these posts on a permanent basis posed a key risk to the 

service and using temporary consultants was very expensive. 

Page 6

mailto:Tony.Thompstone@salford.gov.uk
mailto:Chris.Hesketh@salford.gov.uk
mailto:Joanne.Hardman@salford.gov.uk


The chair thanked the Assistant Director for the update and commended the smooth 

transition back to the Council. He was concerned about the difficulty in recruiting and 

asked if it was intended to undertake a full review of salaries and which posts were 

proving difficult to fill. 

The Assistant Director confirmed that a review carried out two years ago had 

identified that Salford City Council salaries were approximately 40% below those for 

equivalent roles in the private sector, and approximately 10% to 15% below those for 

equivalent roles in other local authorities in the region. Although he continued to 

raise this with HR, thought it unlikely that the council’s pay structure would be 

changed. Current vacancies within Technical Services included Street Lighting 

Engineer, Highways Engineer, Project Manager, Traffic Engineer, Traffic Group 

Engineer and Parking Officer but he was aware that the issue was not exclusive to 

Technical Services.  

In response to a question from Councillor Reynolds about the timescales for the 

review of services, the Assistant Director explained that the team had been working 

with two Data Analysts for the last six months and a number of improvements had 

already been identified and implemented. Over the next 12 months the review would 

be completed in Planning/Building Control. Highway Maintenance and Street Works 

which had the highest level of customer interface.  Where possible, improvements 

identified would be implemented as the review went along and an action plan would 

be put in place for any major IT restructuring required at the end of the 12 month 

period. SAP, timesheets and customer interface were currently standalone and there 

was more work to be done around integrating them, removing the manual interfaces 

and improving functionality for the users.  

The chair thanked the Assistant Director for the report and asked him to take back 

the committee’s concerns about the ongoing recruitment issues and look at ways in 

which the problem might be resolved. 

RESOLVED, THAT the committee: 

1) Note that the services transferred to the council on 1st February 2020 with 

minimal disruption to services following a major effort from the Place programme 

team and support from Service reform.  

2) Note that the internal council programme to deal with the minor issues pertaining 

to the transition of services has now closed down and all services are operating 

as business as usual within existing council structures.  

3) Note that a programme to review services ready for the next stage in the 

integration of services and identifying solutions for continuous improvement has 

commenced, and 

4) Request that the Assistant Director raise with relevant parties within the council 

the serious concerns expressed by members about the ongoing difficulties in 

recruiting to management and technical posts and the resulting risk to, and 

impact on, service provision, with a view to examining if any changes need to be 

made to allow said posts to be filled on a permanent basis.  

 

Page 7



9. 2021 Risk Management Update 

The Assistant Director Strategy and Performance explained that there were two 

elements to the report: an update on Salford City Council’s Risk Management 

Strategy and Policy which was last reviewed in 2018, and the proposed Strategic 

Risk Register for 2021-22. She explained that good practice suggested that a review 

of the Risk Management Strategy and Policy should take place every two years, but 

last year’s review had been postponed due to the pressures that the council faced in 

responding to the pandemic.  

 

She highlighted the following: 

- A review of the strategy and policy had been undertaken over the last three 

months, wherever possible in alignment with the Council’s partners, and 

specifically in alignment with Salford Clinical Commissioning Group’s Risk 

Management Strategy and Policy where appropriate. 

- The language and layout used had been simplified to ensure it was easier for 

staff to engage with the strategy and process, hopefully resulting in risk being 

further embedded across the whole organisation. 

- Key changes included the re-introduction of service group risk registers in line 

with good practice given the scale of the Council’s business. These were aligned 

with the business planning and performance management arrangements now in 

place across all service groups. The fact that the more operational and tactical 

issues were captured in the service group risk registers ensured that the 

Strategic Risk Register could retain a purely strategic focus. 

- The Strategic Risk Register now focused on four cross-cutting areas: 

governance, reputation, finance and legal issues. 

- Target risk scores had been introduced across risk registers, meaning it was now 

easier to monitor progress, hold the organisation to account, demonstrate 

effective risk management practice, and provide better assurance to internal and 

external stakeholders. 

- The Strategic Risk Register was intended to be dynamic and the risks and 

mitigating actions would be reviewed and updated where appropriate throughout 

the year. 

- Risk management would be reported to the Corporate Management Team (CMT) 

on a quarterly basis and an update provided to both Cabinet and this committee 

twice annually. 

- A fundamental review of the Strategic Risk Register had been undertaken coming 

into 2021/22, including a comprehensive risk session with CMT in May. It now 

took into account COVID-19, inequalities work and the operating environment for 

the organisation.  

- The Strategic Risk Register had been pared back from 11 risks to seven, all of 

which now had a strategic owner as well as a day to day delivery manager. 

The chair thanked the Assistant Director for the update and enquired whether it was 

possible to quantify the ‘steady progress…made in embedding risk management 

throughout the Council’ that was referred to in the report. 

Page 8



The Assistant Director explained that business plans across all service groups in the 

Council were due to be finalised within the next few weeks so as to allow a ‘golden 

thread’ through business plans, risk management, risk plans to performance 

management and reporting in the course of the year. The key element of risk 

management that had been missing was the service group risk plans linked to 

business plans and to performance management. She anticipated that within a 

couple of months all of those elements would be in place across the service groups. 

The chair was pleased to hear about the progress in implementing even further 

improvements to the Council’s risk management arrangements which had enabled it 

to deal well very well with the challenges that the pandemic had presented. 

RESOLVED, THAT the committee: 

1) Note the updated Salford City Council Risk Management Strategy and 

Process, and 

2) Note the contents of the 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register. 

 

10. External Auditors Update for the Committee – Mazars 

The External Auditor confirmed that Mazars was planning to deliver the Council’s 

audit over the next couple of months and intended to report back to committee in 

September. This was a very tight timescale given the amount of work involved, 

especially over the holiday period, but she assured the committee that the auditors 

would do everything they could do to try and meet the deadline. 

She referred to the section in the report which referenced a number of reports and 

documents issued by other parties which might be of interest to the committee. She 

drew members’ attention to item 7 MHCLG – Local authority financial reporting and 

external audit, Spring Update, 19 May 2021: item 8 National Audit Office - Local 

Government finance in the pandemic, March 2021, and 12 National Audit Office – 

Initial learning from the government’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic, May 

2021. 

RESOLVED, THAT: the report, and the request for declarations from the chair of the 

Audit and Accounts Committee in relation to governance processes and 

arrangements, be noted. 

 

11. The Audit & Accounts Committee Work Programme 

RESOLVED, THAT: the Work Programme be noted as presented. 

 

12. Urgent Business 

There were no items of urgent business. 

 

13. Date of Next Meeting 

Wednesday 29th September 2021 at 2pm. 

  

Page 9



Committee Members attendance 2021/22 
 = present; A = Apologies submitted; Blank = No apologies submitted.  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Councillor/Member Name June 

23.06.21 

July Sept Oct Nov Jan March 

Councillor R Garrido (chair)        

Councillor M Pevitt A A      

Councillor R Jones  A A      

Councillor G Reynolds A       

Councillor A Shama        

Councillor P Tresadern  A      

Councillor R Walker  A      

Councillor John Walsh        

Councillor B Hinds (invitee) online A      

Vittoria Bugana 
(co-opted member) 

 
 

A A      

Edoardo Bucci  

(co-opted member) 
 

 A      

Page 10



 

 

  
Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO. 

 

 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

AND 
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT

 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 

ON WEDNESDAY 29th SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

TITLE: THE INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2021/22 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

Members are requested to approve the updated version of the internal audit Charter 
for 2021/22 (Appendix 1). 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
The Internal Audit Charter was approved previously by the Audit and Accounts 
Committee in September 2020.   

The work of internal audit is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) which came into effect from 1st April 2013. The Standards comprise a revised 
definition of internal auditing; a Code of Ethics for internal auditors working in the Public 

Sector; the Mission of Internal Audit; the Core Principles for the Professional Practice 
of internal auditing; and the Standards themselves.  

The Standards are mandatory for all internal auditors working in the UK public sector.  
The purpose of this Charter is to define the scope, roles and responsibilities of the 
internal audit function with which internal audit should comply. The Charter follows the 

model charter document provided by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA). 

The Standards were updated in March 2017 and the CIIA’s model charter was updated 

in January 2019. The internal audit Charter was updated accordingly at that time, and 
subsequently reviewed annually. A copy of the Internal Audit Charter is attached at 
Appendix 1 to this report.   

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - Applying the IIA International Standards to 

the UK Public Sector. 

 

KEY DECISION:  NO 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

DETAILS:   

The Relevant Internal Audit Standard Setters which includes CIPFA in respect of local 
government across the UK adopted a common set of Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS) from 1 April 2013.  The standards were updated in March 2017 and 
the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA’s) model charter was updated in 

January 2019; this internal audit Charter has been updated accordingly.   

The revised Charter follows the model charter document provided by the CIIA and 
includes extra detail in line with the PSIAS as follows: 

 

 Definition of the Mission of Internal Audit (section 1) 

 Definition of Roles (section 3) 

 Ethics and Due Professional Care (section 4)  

 Independence and Objectivity (section 7) 

The Charter notes that compliance with the PSIAS requires that the internal audit 
function shall be subject to a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 

in line with the Standards (section 19).  This includes a self assessment on a regular 
basis and an external assessment which must be conducted at least once every five 

years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the 
organisation. The external assessment was undertaken in November 2017 and noted 
that the internal audit service conforms to the PSIAS and the CIPFA Local Government 

Application Note questionnaire.    

Results of quality reviews will be reported to the Audit and Accounts Committee by the 

Head of Internal Audit on a regular basis. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Salford City Council Constitution 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
The work required to deliver the internal audit plan is identified through a regular risk 
assessment process. This is carried out using an established methodology that is 

designed to show that all potential audit areas are considered fairly. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
The work of internal audit forms a key element of the council’s overall system of internal 
control. An effective internal audit service also helps to promote and implement best 
practice and process improvements in the management of risks. A key requirement in 

producing the Annual Governance Statement is to be able to place reliance on the 
opinion and annual report of the Head of Internal Audit. The Corporate risk register is 

reviewed to ensure that the internal audit plan reflects the issues raised. A key 
requirement for the Audit and Accounts Committee in order for the Committee to meet 
its Terms of Reference is to assess the adequacy of the internal audit service.   

 

 

Page 12



 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Nicky Smith, Senior Solicitor  

Internal audit is a statutory service in the context of the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015 and the work it undertakes is governed by the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (“the Standards”). The Standards are mandatory for all 
internal auditors working in the UK public sector. 

The Standards were updated in March 2017 and in that regard require that the 
purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit be formally defined in an 

internal audit Charter, consistent with a revised definition of internal auditing; a Code 
of Ethics for internal auditors working in the Public Sector; the Mission of Internal Audit; 
the Core Principles for the Professional Practice of internal auditing; and the Standards 

themselves. The Chief Audit Executive must periodically review the internal audit 
Charter and present it to senior management and the Board for approval.  

The internal audit Charter is a formal document that defines the internal audit activity’s 
purpose, authority and responsibility. The Charter must establish the internal audit 
activity’s position within the Authority, including the nature of the chief audit executive’s 

functional reporting relationship with the Board, authorise access to records, personnel 
and properties relevant to the performance of engagements, and define the scope of 

internal audit activities.  

Adoption of the Charter provides assurance to the Audit and Accounts Committee that 
the service undertakes its duties in accordance with the requirements of the recognised 

Standards.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Simon Bleckly (Head of Internal Audit) 

There are no budget implications arising from this report. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by:   Christine Flisk (Procurement 

Manager)  

There are no known procurement implications with this report. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by:  Catherine Sharples (HR Manager) 

There are no known HR implications with this report. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: SUPPLIED BY: N/A

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Simon Bleckly  TEL NO: 01925 442217

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A 

 

Page 13



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

4 
 

1. Purpose, Mission Statement and Definition 

The purpose of Salford City Council’s internal audit Charter is to define internal audit’s 
purpose, authority and responsibility. It establishes the internal audit activity’s position 
within the council and reporting lines; authorises access to records, personnel and 

physical property relevant to the performance of audit work; and defines the scope of 
internal audit activities.  

This Charter also covers the arrangements for the appointment of the Head of Internal 
Audit and internal audit staff, and identifies the nature of professionalism, skills and 
experience required. 

The Mission of internal audit is to enhance and protect organisational value by 
providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight. 

The purpose of Salford City Council’s internal audit service is to provide independent, 
objective assurance and consulting services designed to add value and improve the 
council’s operations. The internal audit service helps the council to accomplish its 

objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of governance, risk management and control processes. 

 
2. Statutory 

Internal audit is a statutory service in the context of the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015, which require authorities to ensure that they have a sound system 
of internal control which: 

1) Facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its 
aims and objectives 

2) Ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is 
effective 

3) Includes effective arrangements for the management of risk 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also state that:  

1) A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 

effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance  

2) Any officer or member of a relevant authority must, if required to do so for the 

purposes of the internal audit: 

(a) make available such documents and records; and  

(b) supply such information and explanations as are considered necessary by 
those conducting the internal audit 

3) A relevant authority must, each financial year: 

(a) conduct a review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control; and 

(b) prepare an annual governance statement 

The findings of the review referred to in paragraph 3) must be considered, as part of 
the consideration of the system of internal control by the Audit & Accounts Committee.  
 

Page 14



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

5 
 

3. Roles 
 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the internal audit charter 

defines the terms ‘Board’, ‘Chief Audit Executive’ and ‘Senior Management’ in relation 
to the work of internal audit. For the purposes of internal audit work the roles are 
defined as follows: 

 
Board: 

The internal audit activity is established and defined by the Board, (hereafter referred 
to as the Audit & Accounts Committee). The internal audit activity's responsibilities are 
defined by the Audit & Accounts Committee as part of their oversight role. 
 
Chief Audit Executive: 

The role of the Chief Audit Executive is undertaken by the Head of Internal Audit.   
 
Head of Paid Service 

The council’s head of paid service is the Chief Executive. The Chief Executive receives 
high level assurances from internal audit, relating to the council’s governance 

arrangements. 
 
Senior Management: 

Senior Management is defined as the Chief Executive, Strategic Directors, Assistant 
Directors and members of the Corporate Management Team. 
 
Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) 

The council’s Section 151 officer is required to ensure that appropriate arrangements 

are made for the provision of an internal audit service in accordance with the 
requirements of the Accounts & Audit Regulations (2015). Internal audit activity 

supports the council’s Section 151 officer, to discharge responsibilities for maintaining 
proper administration of financial affairs and an adequate and effective system of 
internal control as required under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and 

by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015. 
 
Monitoring Officer 

The council’s City Solicitor, Legal & Governance Division has the role of Monitoring 
Officer; functions include maintenance of the Constitution, supporting the Standards 

Committee and ensuring lawfulness of decision making. Internal audit activity supports 
the Monitoring Officer in discharging her responsibilities for maintaining high standards 

of governance, conduct and ethical behaviour. 
 

4. Ethics and Due Professional Care 

Salford Internal Audit Services operate in accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2013. Internal audit staff shall govern themselves by 

adherence to the PSIAS Code of Ethics. In addition to this, individual team members 
are also required to adhere to the Codes of Ethics of their professional bodies where 
appropriate.  

Page 15



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

6 
 

Internal auditors who work in the public sector must also have regard to the Committee 

on Standards of Public Life’s Seven Principles of Public Life, information on which can 
be found at Committee on Standards in Public Life. 

Internal auditors must exercise due professional care by considering the: 

• extent of work needed to achieve the engagement’s objectives; 

• relative complexity, materiality or significance of matters to which assurance 

procedures are applied; 

• adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and control 

processes; and  

• probability of significant errors, fraud, or non-compliance. 

The internal audit function is required to comply with Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS). The PSIAS encompass the mandatory elements of the Chartered 

Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) International Professional Practices Framework 
(IPPF) which includes the Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal 

Auditing; the Code of Ethics; the International Standards for the Professional Practice 
of Internal Auditing; and the Definition of Internal Auditing. The Relevant Internal Audit 
Standard Setters, which includes CIPFA in respect of local government across the UK, 

adopted a common set of internal audit standards (PSIAS) from 1 April 2013. The 
Standards were subject to review and update in March 2017 (w/e from 1 April 2017).  

Compliance with the Standards shall be subject to a quality assurance and 
improvement programme in line with the Standards. This includes a self-assessment 
on a regular basis and an external assessment which must be conducted at least once 

every five years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from 
outside the organisation. Results of quality reviews, and conformance to the Standards 

and the Code of Ethics, shall be reported to the Audit and Accounts Committee by the 
Head of Internal Audit. 

The Core Principles within the PSIAS articulate internal audit effectiveness. For an 

internal audit function to be considered effective, all Principles should be present and 
operating effectively; failure to achieve any of the Principles would imply that an 

internal audit activity was not as effective as it could be in achieving internal audit’s 
mission (see Mission of Internal Audit).  

The internal audit activity must achieve the following ten Core Principles:  

• demonstrates integrity;  

• demonstrates competence and due professional care; 

• is objective and free from undue influence (independent); 

• aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation;  

• is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced; 

• demonstrates quality and continuous improvement; 

• communicates effectively;  

• provides risk-based assurance; 

• is insightful, proactive, and future-focused; and 

Page 16

http://www.public-standards.gov.uk/about-us/what-we-do/the-seven-principles/
http://www.public-standards.gov.uk/


Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

7 
 

• promotes organisational improvement. 

 

5. Authority 

The internal audit activity, with strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding 
records and information, will have full, free and unrestricted access to any and all of 
the organisation's records, physical properties and personnel pertinent to carrying out 

any engagement.  

All employees are requested to assist the internal audit activity in fulfilling its roles and 

responsibilities. The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chief Officers; the 
Chief Executive; all levels of management; the Chair of the Audit and Accounts 
Committee; and the Elected City Mayor. 

Designated auditors are entitled, without necessarily giving prior notice, to require and 
receive: 

• access to all records, documents and correspondence relating to any financial 
or other relevant transactions, including documents of a confidential nature; 

• access at all reasonable times to any land, premises, officer and member of 
the Council; 

• the production of any cash, stores or other property of the Council under an 
officer’s and member’s control; and 

• explanations concerning any matter under investigation. 

Where the council works in partnership with other organisations, the role of internal 

audit will be defined on an individual basis. Where internal audit undertakes work on 
behalf of any other organisations, this will be determined in conjunction with the 

organisation’s Board and in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer to ensure that 
appropriate audit resources are available to provide assurance over the council’s 
activities.  

External assurance work will result in an assurance statement to the organisation’s 
Board and recommendations to senior management. 

 
6. Organisation 

Internal audit resides within the Service Reform Service Group. On an administrative 

level, the Head of Internal Audit reports to the Chief Finance Officer (S151 Officer) and 
also reports to the Governance Group which is chaired by the Monitoring Officer. 

The Head of Internal Audit reports to the Audit & Accounts Committee, who approves 
the Annual Internal Audit Plan. The Audit & Accounts Committee reviews the 
adequacy of internal audit, the scope and nature of its work and receives and reviews 

its reports.  

The Head of Internal Audit shall have an independent right of access to the Chair of 

the Audit and Accounts Committee. In exceptional circumstances, where normal 
reporting channels may be seen to impinge on the objectivity of the audit, the Head of 
Internal Audit may report directly to the Chair of the Audit and Accounts Committee 

Annually, the Head of Internal Audit shall have a period of time with the Audit & 
Accounts Committee Members in camera. 

Page 17



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

8 
 

 
7. Independence and Objectivity 

The internal audit activity will remain free from interference by any element in the 

organisation, including matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency, 
timing, or report content to permit maintenance of a necessary independent and 
objective mental attitude. 

Internal auditors will have no direct operational responsibility or authority over any of 
the activities audited. Accordingly, they will not implement internal controls, develop 

procedures, install systems, prepare records, or engage in any other activity that may 
impair internal auditor's judgment including: 

• assessing specific operations for which they had responsibility within the 

previous year; 

• performing any operational duties for the council or its affiliates; 

• initiating or approving transactions external to the internal audit service; and 

• directing the activities of any council employee not employed by the internal 
audit service, except to the extent that such employees have been 

appropriately assigned to auditing teams or to otherwise assist internal 
auditors. 

Where internal audit provides consultancy services and/or the Head of Internal Audit 

has or is expected to have roles and/or responsibilities that fall outside of internal 
auditing, safeguards must be in place to limit impairments to independence or 

objectivity.  

Any operational (non-audit) activities undertaken by the Head of Internal Audit or a 
member of the internal audit team are recorded and any conflict of interest declared 

to ensure that the independence of future internal audit work in respect of the activity 
is not compromised. The Head of Internal Audit will disclose to the Audit and Accounts 

Committee any interference and related implications in determining the scope of 
internal audit, performing work and/or communicating results. 

Internal auditors must exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, 

evaluating, and communicating information about the activity or process being 
examined.  

Internal auditors must make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances 
and not be unduly influenced by their own interests or by others in forming judgments. 
If potential impairment to independence or objectivity, in fact or appearance, related 

to the proposed audit, disclosure must be made prior to accepting the engagement. 

The Head of Internal Audit will confirm to the Audit and Accounts Committee, at least 

annually, the organisational independence of the internal audit activity.  

 
8. Responsibility 

Internal audit is responsible for establishing procedures and applying the required 
resources to ensure that the service conforms with the Mission Statement, the 

Definition of Internal Auditing and the Standards. The members of the internal audit 
team must demonstrate conformance with the Core Principles, the Code of Ethics and 

the Standards.     

Page 18



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

9 
 

The scope of internal auditing encompasses, but is not limited to, the examination and 

evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation's governance, risk 
management, and internal control processes in relation to the organisation's defined 
goals and objectives.  

Internal control objectives must assist the organisation in maintaining effective controls 
by evaluating their effectiveness and efficiency and by promoting continuous 

improvement. The internal audit activity must evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness 
of controls in responding to risks within the organisation’s governance, operations and 
information systems regarding:  

 consistency of operations or programs with established objectives and goals 
and effective performance;   

 effectiveness and efficiency of operations and employment of resources; 

 compliance with significant policies, plans, procedures, laws, and regulations; 

 reliability and integrity of management and financial information processes, 

including the means to identify, measure, classify, and report such information; 
and  

 safeguarding of assets.  

Internal audit is responsible for evaluating all processes ('audit universe') of the entity 
including governance processes and risk management processes. The Head of 

Internal Audit must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used 
by the organisation to inform its Annual Governance Statement (AGS). The annual 

internal audit opinion must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control.  This is the 
‘assurance role’ for internal audit. The Head of Internal Audit’s opinions are a key 

element of the framework of assurance the Chief Executive and the Leader of the 
Council need to inform the completion of the AGS. 

Internal audit may perform consulting and advisory services related to governance, 
risk management and control as appropriate for the organisation. This is advisory in 
nature and generally performed at the specific request of the organisation, provided 

the internal audit service does not assume management responsibility. The aim of the 
consultancy service is to help line management improve the council’s risk 

management, governance and internal control. This is the ‘Consultancy’ role for 
internal audit and contributes towards the overall opinion. 

Significant consultancy work expected during 2021/22, as detailed within the internal 

audit plan and progress reports is detailed below: 

 

Head of Internal Audit – Attends 
Governance  Group 

 

Review of risk management 
arrangements by audit manager 

Head of Internal Audit – Role in the 
facilitation of Annual Governance 
Statement and Code of Corporate 

Governance 

Periodic review of arrangements by 
audit manager.  

Page 19



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

10 
 

Internal Audit team work on 
transformation and change (e.g. 
squads)  

Audit Manager and Principal auditor link 
to project teams, supported by Salford 
audit work 

IT Audit team input into replacement 
social care system 

IT Audit Manager and Principal IT 
Auditor link to project teams, supported 

by Salford IT audit work 

 

Based on its activity, internal audit is responsible for reporting significant risk 
exposures and control issues identified to the Audit and Accounts Committee and to 

Senior Management, including fraud risks, governance issues, and other matters 
needed or requested by the Audit and Accounts Committee.   

Internal audit may also evaluate specific operations at the request of the Audit & 

Accounts Committee or Senior Management, as appropriate.  

Fraud 

Managing the risk of fraud is the responsibility of line management. The Section 151 
Officer has specific responsibilities in relation to the detection and investigation of 
fraud and may request internal audit to assist with the investigation of suspected fraud 

or corruption. The relationship between the council’s corporate fraud team; the 
corporate fraud lead; the Head of Internal Audit; the Section 151 Officer; Legal 

Services and HR is to be set out in a fraud response plan. 

Internal audit will provide support for the Council’s Anti-Fraud & Anti-Corruption 
Strategy and will investigate significant matters that are reported to them. The Head 

of Internal Audit will ensure awareness of all serious suspected or detected fraud so 
that the adequacy of the relevant controls for the opinion on the internal control 

environment can be considered.   

Whilst it is not a primary role of internal audit to detect fraud, it does have a role in 
providing an independent assurance on the effectiveness of the processes put in place 

by management to manage the risk of fraud. Internal audit can do additional work, 
although it cannot be prejudicial to this primary role. Typical activities may include: 

 investigating the cause of fraud; 

 responding to whistleblowers; 

 considering fraud in every audit; 

 making recommendations to improve processes; and  

 review fraud prevention controls and detection processes put in place by 

management. 
 
 

 
9. Internal Audit Plan 

The Head of Internal Audit should develop and maintain a strategy for providing the 
Section 151 Officer economically and efficiently, with objective evaluation of, and 
opinions on, the effectiveness of the council’s risk management, governance and 

internal control arrangements 

Page 20



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

11 
 

At least annually, the Head of Internal Audit will submit to the Audit & Accounts 

Committee a risk-based Internal Audit Plan for review and approval, including risk 
assessment criteria. The Internal Audit Plan will include timing as well as budget and 
resource requirements for the next fiscal year. The Head of Internal Audit will 

communicate the impact of any resource limitations or significant changes to Senior 
Management and the Audit & Accounts Committee.  

The Internal Audit Plan will be developed based on a prioritisation of the audit universe 
using a risk-based methodology, including input of Senior Management and the Audit 
& Accounts Committee. The plan will be discussed with appropriate Senior 

Management prior to submission to the Audit & Accounts Committee for approval.  

The Head of Internal Audit will review and adjust the internal audit plan, as necessary, 

in response to changes in council’s business, risks, operations, programmes, systems 
and controls. Any significant deviation from the approved Internal Audit Plan will be 
communicated through the periodic activity reporting process. These activities will all 

combine to assist the Head of Internal Audit in the production of an annual report and 
annual audit opinion on the council’s control environment, as required by the 

Standards. 

 
10. Scope of Internal Audit Work – Opinion Work 

The internal audit activity must evaluate and contribute to the improvement of 
governance, risk management and control processes using a systematic and 
disciplined approach.   

Governance 

Internal audit must assess and make appropriate recommendations for improving the 
governance process in its accomplishment of the following objectives:  

 promoting appropriate ethics and values within the organisation;  

 ensuring effective organisational performance management and accountability;  

 communicating risk and control information to appropriate areas of the 

organisation; and  

 co-ordinating the activities of and communicating information among the Audit 

and Accounts Committee, external and internal auditors and management. 

 

  

Page 21



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

12 
 

Risk Management 

In order to prepare the risk-based audit plan, the Head of Internal Audit undertakes a 
review of the council’s risk registers, and has discussions with Strategic Directors of 
Service Groups. 

A risk assessment is undertaken by scoring a number of factors, which are weighted 
to give an overall risk score. The resultant Internal Audit Plan will provide for: 

 the balance of the range of reviews and sufficient coverage to ensure that 
External Audit can consider the work of internal audit; 

 the need to update and review for emerging risks; 

 contingency time for ad hoc reviews or fraud investigations; 

 sufficient time for audit management including audit planning, development of 

the annual opinion and attendance at meetings and maintenance of audit 
policies and procedures; 

 staff training and development needs; 

 liaison time with other assurance providers to share information, such as the 
External Auditor; 

 assurances provided by other bodies; and  

 a proper degree of co-ordination with the plan of the external audit team.  

Internal Control 

Internal audit must assist the organisation in maintaining effective controls by 
evaluating their effectiveness and efficiency and by promoting continuous 

improvement. The internal audit activity must evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness 
of controls in responding to risks within the organisation’s governance, operations and 
information systems regarding the:  

• achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives;  

• reliability and integrity of financial and operational information; 

• economical, effective and efficient use of resources; 

• effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes;  

• safeguarding of the council’s assets and interests from losses of all kinds, 

including those arising from fraud, irregularity corruption or bribery; and 

• compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts. 

 
11. Overall Opinions 

The annual report of the Head of Internal Audit is used to inform the Annual 

Governance Statement. This report must conclude on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance, risk management and control 

giving an overall opinion, summary of the work undertaken to support this opinion 
(including any reliance placed on work by other assurance providers).  

A statement will also be made on the conformance with the PSIAS and the CIIA’s 

Code of Ethics, the results of the quality assurance and improvement program and 

Page 22



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

13 
 

any external assessor’s improvement recommendations, disclosure of any 

impairments or limitations. If an unfavourable opinion is given, the reasons for this 
must be specified. 

A statement will also be made on the conformance with the PSIAS, the results of the 

quality assurance and improvement program and any external assessor’s 
improvement recommendations, disclosure of any impairments or limitations. If an 

unfavourable opinion is given, the reasons for this must be specified. 

 
12. Non-Opinion Work 

Internal audit may provide, at the request of management, a consultancy service which 
evaluates the policies, procedures and operations put in place by management. A 

specific contingency should be made in the internal audit plan to allow for management 
requests and consultancy work. 

The Head of Internal Audit must consider the effect on the opinion work before 
accepting consultancy work or management requests over and above the contingency 
allowed for in the internal audit plan. Approval must be sought from the Audit and 

Accounts Committee for any significant additional consulting services not already 
included in the audit plan, prior to accepting the engagement. The Head of Internal 

Audit must consider how the consultancy work contributes towards the overall opinion.  

 
13. Performance Standards 

Internal audit’s prime responsibility is to the council. Where the council activities are 
undertaken by “partners”, internal audit needs to have assurance that risks and 

controls are being properly managed by those organisations.  

In order to give an evidenced based opinion, a minimum level of coverage is requi red.  
When planning the work of internal audit, assurances provided by third parties can be 

considered. 

 
14. Audit Delivery 

Engagement Planning 

For each engagement, a Terms of Reference will be prepared, and agreed with 
relevant managers. The Terms of Reference will establish the objectives, scope and 
timing for the audit assignment, and reporting requirements.  

Audit work is undertaken using a risk based audit approach, which will consider the 
probability of significant errors, fraud, value for money and non-compliance. Risk 

categories are used to assess the level of risk within the processes under review. 

Performing the Engagement 

Auditors are required to identify, analyse, evaluate and document sufficient information 

to achieve the review’s objectives. This evidence supports their conclusions, 
professional judgments and recommendations and therefore must be factual and 

accurate.  

Page 23



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

14 
 

This data is held in compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation and 

internal audit’s Document Retention Policy. Engagements are properly supervised to 
ensure objectives are achieved, quality is assured and staff is developed. 

Where key systems are being operated on behalf of the council, or where key 

partnerships are in place, the Head of Internal Audit must ensure arrangements are in 
place to form an opinion on their effectiveness. 

Where the council operates systems on behalf of other bodies, the Head of Internal 
Audit must be consulted on the audit arrangements proposed or in place. 

It is management’s responsibility to ensure the provision for relevant audit rights of 

access in any contract or Service Level Agreement the council enters into, either as 
provider or commissioner of the service. 

Reporting and Monitoring 

A written report will be prepared including the objective, scope, and the internal 
auditors’ opinion; all material findings, and recommendations and this will be issued 

by the Head of Internal Audit or designee following the conclusion of each internal 
audit engagement.  

It will be distributed in accordance with internal protocols. Internal audit results will also 
be communicated to the Audit and Accounts Committee. All reports will be accurate, 
objective, clear, concise, constructive, complete and timely. 

The internal audit report may include management's response and corrective action 
taken or to be taken in regard to the specific findings and recommendations.  

Management's response, whether included within the original audit report or provided 
thereafter of the audited area should include a timetable for anticipated completion of 
action to be taken and an explanation for any corrective action that will not be 

implemented. 

If the final communication contains a significant error or omission, the Head of Internal 

Audit will communicate the corrected information to relevant parties. 

Internal audit undertakes a further review of agreed actions by means of Post 
Implementation Reviews. It is the responsibility of the manager to ensure agreed 

recommendations are implemented and for them to provide relevant evidence to 
internal audit. 

The findings and results of Post Implementation Reviews are communicated to the 
Audit and Accounts Committee and used to inform future audit planning. 

 
15. Communicating the Acceptance of Risks 

If the Head of Internal Audit concludes that management has accepted a level of risk 

that may be unacceptable to the organisation, the Head of Internal Audit will discuss 
the matter with Senior Management. If the Head of Internal Audit determines that the 
matter has not been resolved, the Head of Internal Audit will communicate the matter 

to the S151 Officer and Audit and Accounts Committee.  

 

 

Page 24



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

15 
 

16. Responsibilities of the Council 

The council is responsible for ensuring that internal audit is provided with all necessary 
assistance and support to ensure that it meets the required standards.    

The Section 151 Officer will make appropriate arrangements for the provision of an 

internal audit service. This will include the formal adoption of this Charter by the Audit 
& Accounts Committee and the adoption of corresponding elements in the Financial 

Procedure Rules. 

The council will ensure it has taken all necessary steps to provide internal audit with 
information on its objectives, risks, and controls to allow the proper execution of the 

audit strategy and adherence to internal audit standards. This will include notifying 
internal audit of any significant changes in key control systems which may affect the 

internal audit plan. 

The council, through the Chief Executive; Monitoring Officer; Director of Service 
Reform, Section 151 Officer; and other relevant managers will respond promptly to 

audit plans, reports and recommendations.       

Responsibility for monitoring and ensuring the implementation of agreed 

recommendations rests with the council. 

 
17. Skills and Competencies 

Head of Internal Audit 

The Head of Internal Audit will be appointed by the council and will have sufficient skill, 

experience and competencies to work with the leadership team and the Audit & 
Accounts Committee and influence the risk management, governance and internal 

control of the council. The Head of Internal Audit must hold a professional qualification 
(CCAB, CMIIA or equivalent) and be suitably experienced.  

The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for appointing the staff of internal audit and 

will ensure that appointments are made in order to achieve the appropriate mix of 
qualifications, experience and audit skills and meet the requirements of the PSIAS. 

Internal audit maintains an annually updated Training and Development Plan that sets 
out an ongoing development programme for internal audit staff. 

The Head of Internal Audit has responsibility to establish and ensure adherence to 

policies and procedures designed to guide the internal audit activity. This also includes 
ensure emerging trends and successful practices in internal auditing are considered. 

The Head of Internal Audit has the responsibility to ensure adherence to the council’s 
relevant policies and procedures, unless such policies and procedures conflict with the 
internal audit charter. Any such conflicts will be resolved or otherwise communicated 

to senior management and the Audit and Accounts Committee 

Internal Audit Staff 

Internal audit must be appropriately staffed in terms of grades, qualification levels and 
experience, having regards to its objectives and to the risk level within the council. 
Internal auditors need to be properly trained to fulfil their responsibilities and should 

maintain their professional competence through an appropriate ongoing development 
programme. 

Page 25



Appendix 1: Salford City Council Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

 

16 
 

Each job role within the internal audit structure will detail skills and competencies 

within the approved role profile (job description and person specification). In line with 
council policy and the PSIAS, each member of the team will be assessed against these 
predetermined competencies and annual objectives.  

Any development and training plans will be regularly reviewed, monitored and agreed 
with officers. This assessment will also take into account competency changes as 

needed i.e. to reflect changing technology and legislation. 

Auditors are also required to maintain a record of their continual professional 
development in line with their professional body.   

 
18. Periodic Assessment 

The Head of Internal Audit is also responsible for providing, periodically, a self-
assessment on the internal audit activity as regards its consistency with the internal 

audit Charter (purpose, authority, responsibility) and performance relative to its 
internal audit Plan. 

 
19. Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 

The internal audit activity will maintain a quality assurance and improvement 

programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity. The programme will 
include an evaluation of the internal audit activity's conformance with the PSIAS and 
the Definition of Internal Auditing and an evaluation of whether internal auditors apply 

the Code of Ethics.  

The programme also assesses the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit 

activity and identifies opportunities for improvement. 

The Head of Internal Audit will communicate to Senior Management and the Audit and 
Accounts Committee on the internal audit activity's quality assurance and 

improvement programme, including results of ongoing internal assessments and 
external assessments conducted at least every five years by a qualified, independent 

assessor or assessment team from outside the council. 

20. Internal Audit Resources 

If the Head of Internal Audit or the Audit and Accounts Committee consider that the 
level of audit resources or the terms of reference in any way limit the scope of 

internal audit, or prejudice the ability of internal audit to deliver a service consistent 
with the Mission, the Definition of Internal Auditing and the Standards, they should 
advise the Chief Executive and the Section 151 Officer accordingly. 

21. Review 

This Charter will be the subject of an annual review by the Head of Internal Audit and 
will be formally presented to the Audit and Accounts Committee for approval. 

Page 26



 

 
Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO. 

 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

AND 

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT

 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 

ON WEDNESDAY 29th SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

TITLE: Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

That Members approve the content of this report and consider comment on and 

approve the updated Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement programme 

(Appendix 1). 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the formal documenting of a 

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP). This covers all aspects of 
the internal audit activity and enables compliance with all aspects of the PSIAS to be 
evaluated.  

It allows for the assessment of the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit 
activity and identifies opportunities for improvement. This is through both internal and 

external assessments. The requirement for an external assessment of the internal 
audit activity is at least once in every 5 years.  

The results of the QAIP must be reported to senior management and the Audit and 

Accounts Committee on an annual basis. This may be provided within internal audit’s 
annual report and opinion.  

The QAIP is designed to provide assurance that internal audit performs its work in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The updated 
QAIP for Salford City Council is attached as appendix 1 to this report. 

 

 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



1 
 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

 

KEY DECISION: NO

 

DETAILS:  See above

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

If the Council fails to comply with the legislation and regulations, then there are 

reputational risks as well as financial and legal risks. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

The work of internal audit forms a key element of the council’s overall system of 

internal control. An effective internal audit service also helps to promote and 
implement best practice and process improvements in the management of risks. A key 

requirement in producing the Annual Governance Statement is to be able to place 
reliance on the opinion and annual report of the Head of Internal Audit. The Corporate 
risk register is reviewed to ensure that the internal audit plan reflects the issues raised. 

A key requirement for the Audit and Accounts Committee in order for the Committee to 
meet its Terms of Reference is to assess the adequacy of the internal audit service. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Nicky Smith, Senior Solicitor 

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and to secure that 

one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also require authorities to ensure that they 

have a sound system of internal control which: 

(a)  facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims 

and objectives; 

(b)  ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is effective; 

and 

(c)  includes effective arrangements for the management of risk. 

Page 28



2 
 

 

A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 

effectiveness of its risk management control and governance processes, taking into 

account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance. 

In that regard, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (CIPFA/CIIA) require that the 

chief audit executive develops and maintains a quality assurance and improvement 

programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity.  

A quality assurance and improvement programme is designed to enable an evaluation 

of the internal audit activity’s conformance with the Definition of Internal Audi ting and 

the Standards and an evaluation of whether internal auditors apply the Code of Ethics. 

The programme also assesses the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit 

activity and identifies opportunities for improvement. 

The quality assurance and improvement programme must include both internal and 

external assessments. Internal assessments must include ongoing monitoring of the 

performance of the internal audit activity; and periodic self-assessments or 

assessments by other persons within the organisation with sufficient knowledge of 

internal audit practices. 

External assessments must be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, 

independent assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. The chief 

audit executive must discuss with the board the form of external assessments and the 

qualifications and independence of the external assessor or assessment team, 

including any potential conflict of interest. External assessments can be in the form of 

a full external assessment, or a self-assessment with independent external validation. 

The chief audit executive must communicate the results of the quality assurance and 

improvement programme to senior management and the board. 

The form, content and frequency of communicating the results of the quality assurance 

and improvement programme is established through discussions with senior 

management and the board and considers the responsibilities of the internal audit 

activity and chief audit executive as contained in the internal audit charter.  

To demonstrate conformance with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of 

Ethics and the Standards, the results of external and periodic internal assessments 

are communicated upon completion of such assessments and the results of ongoing 

monitoring are communicated at least annually. The results include the assessor’s or 

assessment team’s evaluation with respect to the degree of conformance. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Simon Bleckly, Head of Audit  

Managed through the normal revenue budget, the only additional cost relates to staff 

training. 

Page 29



3 
 

 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Christine Flisk, Procurement 

Manager. 

There are no known procurement implications with this report. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Catherine Sharples, HR Manager 

There are no known HR implications with this report.

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A  

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Simon Bleckly TEL NO: 01925 442217

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All

 

Page 30



Appendix 1 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
 

QUALITY ASSURANCE & 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by:  
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Simon Bleckly  Version 7.0 
Head of Internal Audit  October 2021 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 31



 
 

1 
 

Contents 
 
 

 Page 

 
1. Introduction 2 

 
2. Internal Assessments 2 

 

3. External Assessments 4 
 

4. Review of the QAIP 4 

 

 

 

     Appendices 

A Key Performance Indicators 

B  Action Plan - Internal Assessment 

C  Action Plan - External Assessment 

Page 32



INTERNAL AUDIT - QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME                                                                

2 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Internal audit’s Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) is 

designed to provide reasonable assurance to the various stakeholders of 

internal audit activity that internal audit: 

 performs its work in accordance with its Charter, which is consistent with 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), the PSIAS definition of 

Internal Auditing and Code of Ethics; 

 operates in an effective and efficient manner; and 

 is perceived by stakeholders as adding value and improving internal 

audit’s operations. 

1.2 Internal audit’s QAIP covers all aspects of the internal audit activity in 

accordance with the PSIAS, including: 

 monitoring the internal audit activity to ensure it operates in an effective 
and efficient manner; 

 ensuring compliance with the PSIAS’ Definition of Internal Auditing and 

Code of Ethics; 

 helping the internal audit activity add value and improve organisational 

operations; 

 undertaking both periodic and on-going internal assessments; and 

 commissioning an external assessment at least once every five years, the 
results of which are communicated to the Audit & Accounts Committee and 

Chief Finance Officer in accordance with PSIAS. 

1.3 The Head of Internal Audit is ultimately responsible for the QAIP, which covers 

all types of internal audit activities, including consulting. 

2. Internal Assessments 

2.1 In accordance with the PSIAS, internal assessments are undertaken through 

both on-going and periodic reviews. 

On-going Reviews 

2.2 Continual assessments are conducted through: 

 management supervision of all engagements; 

 structured, documented review of working papers and draft reports by 
Internal Audit management; 

 audit Policies and Procedures used for each engagement to ensure 
consistency, quality and compliance with appropriate planning, fieldwork 

and reporting standards; 

Page 33



INTERNAL AUDIT - QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME                                                                

3 
 

 feedback from audit clients obtained through post audit Quality Control 
Questionnaires (QCQs) at the closure of each engagement; 

 review and approval of all final reports, recommendations and levels of 
assurance by Audit Manager and  the Head of Internal Audit, and 

 regular team briefings attended by all members of the internal audit team for 
which minutes are retained. 

Periodic Reviews 

2.3 Periodic assessments are designed to assess conformance with Internal 
Audit’s Charter, the PSIAS, Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, 

and the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit in meeting the needs of its 
various stakeholders.  Periodic assessments are conducted through: 

 monitoring of internal performance targets and regular progress reports to 
Audit & Accounts Committee;  

 periodic audit survey to all Heads of Service; 

 annual risk assessments, in accordance with the internal audit development 
plan, for the purposes of annual audit planning; 

 annual review of the effectiveness of internal audit, undertaken by the Head 
of Internal Audit; 

 annual review of compliance against the requirements of this Quali ty 
Assurance & Improvement Programme, the results of which are reported to 

Senior Management and the Audit & Accounts Committee; 

 feedback from the Chief Finance Officer and the Chair of the Audit & 
Accounts Committee to inform the annual appraisal of the Head of Internal 

Audit, in accordance with Standard 1100; 

 periodic appraisal process to identify individual training and development 

needs; and 

 annual review of performance and development of all internal audit staff in 

accordance with the council’s PDR process. 

2.4 Results of internal assessments will be reported to the Audit & Accounts 
Committee at least annually. The Head of Internal Audit will implement 

appropriate follow-up to any identified actions to ensure continual improvement 
of the service. 

2.5 Any significant areas of non-compliance with the PSIAS that are identified 
 through internal assessment will be reported in the Head of Internal Audit’s 
 Annual Report and used to inform the Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  

Page 34



INTERNAL AUDIT - QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME                                                                

4 
 

3. External Assessments 

3.1 External assessments will appraise and express an opinion about internal 

audit’s conformance with the PSIAS, Definition of Internal Auditing and Code of 

Ethics and include recommendations for improvement, as appropriate. 

Frequency of External Assessment 

3.2 An external assessment will be conducted at least every five years, in 

accordance with the PSIAS. Appointment of the External Assessor and scope 

of the external assessment will be approved by the Audit & Accounts 

Committee. 

Scope of External Assessment 

3.3 The external assessment will consist of broad scope of coverage that includes 

the following elements of Internal Audit activity: 

 conformance with the Standards, Definition of Internal Auditing, Mission of 

Internal Auditing; the Code of Ethics, and Internal Audit’s Charter, plans, 

policies, procedures, practices, and any applicable legislative and 

regulatory requirements; 

 integration of the internal audit activity into the council’s governance 

framework, including the audit relationship between and among the key 

groups involved in the process; 

 tools and techniques used by internal audit; 

 the mix of knowledge, experiences, and disciplines within the staff, including 

staff focus on process improvement delivered through this Quali ty 

Assurance and Improvement Programme; and 

 a determination whether internal audit adds value and improves the 

council’s operations. 

3.4  Results of external assessments will be provided to the Chief Finance Officer 

and the Audit & Accounts Committee.  The external assessment report will be 

accompanied by a written action plan in response to significant comments and 

recommendations identified.   

3.5 Any significant areas of non-compliance will be reported in the Annual Report 

of the Head of Internal Audit and in the council’s Annual Governance Statement 

(AGS). 

4. Review of the QAIP 

This document will be updated appropriately following any changes to the PSIAS or 

internal audit’s operating environment and will be reviewed at least on an annual basis.

Page 35



INTERNAL AUDIT - QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME                                                                

5 
 

Appendix A 

Key Performance Indicators 

Detailed below are Key Performance Indicators that we should be measured against 

when delivering our Internal Audit Service: 

Performance Plan delivered in accordance with agreed timescales  

 Measure: 80% of plan delivered in financial year, 90% compared to 
planned, by the time of the HOIA 

The average utilisation of audit days achieved by staff 

 Measure: target average utilisation of staff is 88% of days available.  

Draft report issued in accordance with timescales agreed within 

the individual Terms of Reference 

 Measure: 90% of draft reports issued within timescales  

Timely issue of the draft report, following completion of fieldwork. 

 Measure: 90% of draft reports issued within 10 work ing days of the receipt 
of management response  

Timely issue of the final report following receipt of management 

responses  

 Measure: 90% of final reports issued within 5 work ing days of the receipt of 
management response 

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion is issued in accordance with 
the agreed timescale.  

 Measure: Met or not met 

Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

 Measure: 100% compliance  

 

Contribution Strengthening of the control framework 

 Measure: Percentage of critical, high and medium priority 
recommendations agreed – target 100%  

 Measure: Percentage of critical, high and medium priority 
recommendations implemented – target 80%  

Council sees a positive contribution from Audit Services 

 Measure: Feedback on client satisfaction survey in relation to satisfaction 
with the quality, accuracy and usefulness of the audit output - 75% Overall 
satisfaction rate  

Audit and Accounts Committee members (and attendees) see a 

positive contribution from Audit Services 

 Measure: Feedback on committee self-assessment 

External Audit opinion on Internal Audit 

 Measure: No adverse comments in Management Letter  

Page 36



INTERNAL AUDIT - QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME                                                                                      Appendix B           

6 
 

PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS  

Internal Audit Development Plan (Partial/Non Compliance)  

Updated September 2021   

Ref PARTIAL COMPLIANCE Required Action Timescale/ 

Responsibility  

Comment/Outcome 

STANDARDS 

3. ATTRIBUTE STANDARDS 

3.2:  1200 Proficiency and Due Professional Care 

1210 Proficiency 

Action Point 1 Does the internal audit activity 

collectively possess or obtain 

the skills, knowledge and other 

competencies required to 

perform its responsibilities? 

 

Further skills required in the 

following areas: 

Counter fraud 

Contract audit 

Financial audits 

 

CAE 

March 2020 

 

Complete - Financial: The team now has a 

CIPFA qualified auditor and another 

studying towards CIPFA. 

Complete - Fraud: Audit Manager CIPFA 

qualified and undertook CIPFA counter 

fraud specialist training and the team has an 

auditor holding the accredited counter fraud 

technician qualification.  

In progress - Contracts: A principal auditor 

has joined the re-formed north west contract 

auditors group. One of the senior auditors 

undertook contract audit training.  

 

     

P
age 37



INTERNAL AUDIT - QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME                                                                                      Appendix B           

7 
 

Ref PARTIAL COMPLIANCE Required Action Timescale/ 

Responsibility  

Comment/Outcome 

3.4:   1300 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 

1320  Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme  

Action Point 2 Has the CAE reported the 

results of the QAIP to senior 

management and the board? 

 

Results of the QAIP to be 

reported to senior 

management and the Audit 

& Accounts Committee. 

CAE 

April 2020 

 

Complete 

Action Point 3 Has the CAE included the 

results of the QAIP and 

progress against any 

improvement plans in the 

annual report? 

Results of the QAIP and 

progress against any 

improvement plans to be 

included in the annual 

report. 

CAE 

April 2020 

 

Complete 

4. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

4.1  2000 Managing the Internal Audit Activity 

2050  Co-ordination 

Action Point 4 Has the CAE carried out an 

assurance mapping exercise as 

part of identifying and 

determining the approach to 

using other sources of 

assurance? 

 

Develop assurance map to 

inform planning for 2021/22  

CAE 

March 2022 

In Progress. Full roll out in planning delayed 

due to the pandemic / capacity, but 

established for Place Directorate.  

Other sources of assurance were identified 

and utilised by the Head of Audit to inform 

the annual report and Head of Audit Opinion 

for 2020/21. 

 

P
age 38



INTERNAL AUDIT - QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME                                                                                      Appendix B           

8 
 

Ref NON-COMPLIANCE Required Action Timescale/ 

Responsibility  

Comment/Outcome 

STANDARDS 

4. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

2450  Overall Opinion 

Action Point 5 Does the annual report incorporate the 

following: 

h) The results of the QAIP? 

i) Progress against any improvement 

plans resulting from the QAIP? 

 

 

Include in 2019/20 

annual report  

CAE  

April 2020 

Complete 

P
age 39



INTERNAL AUDIT - QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME                                                                                      Appendix C           

9 
 

 

PSIAS Ref Rec 
No. 

Points for consideration Responsible Action Updated Action 
September 2021 

1110 2 In addition to taking reports about 

Internal Audit activity to the Audit 

and Accounts Committee, such 

reports should also be taken to the 

Council’s Senior Management 

Team to increase visibility of the 

function at this level.  

Head of Internal 
Audit 

Agreed – discussed with S151 
and Corporate Management 
Team Feb 18.  The Head of 
Internal Audit will make 
progress reports available to 
the Corporate Management 
Team twice yearly.  
 
Ongoing 
 
 

To Service Reform SLT twice 
yearly from 2020 onwards, 
(autumn and spring) 

1110 4 Feedback from the Chief Executive 

and / or the Chair of the Audit and 

Accounts Committee should be 

sought and provided as part of the 

Head of Internal Audit’s appraisal 

process. 

 

 

Head of Internal 
Audit 

Feedback from Audit and 
Accounts Committee Chair and 
S151 will be requested to 
inform the S151 at Warrington 
re CAE appraisal process.  
 
September 2020 

As required  

1210 7 All job descriptions and person 

specifications need to be updated 

to reflect the roles, responsibilities, 

qualifications, competencies, skills 

and experience required to carry 

out each post within the service.  

This includes the Shared Head of 

Internal Audit role. 

Head of Internal 
Audit 

Agreed and complete. Role 
profiles are now being 
developed. 

Complete 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 40



INTERNAL AUDIT - QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME                                                                                      Appendix C           

10 
 

2010 10 The assurance mapping exercise 

should be completed to support the 

audit planning process, and provide 

a clearer demonstration of how 

risks to the organisation are 

considered and assessed during 

the process of producing the 

annual Internal Audit plan.  

 

 

Head of Internal 
Audit 

Agreed and in progress. This 
will be assessed in the 
planning process  
 

In Progress. Full roll out in 
planning delayed due to the 
pandemic / capacity, but 
established for Place 
Directorate from 2020/21 and 
2021/22 plans.  
 

2010 11 The audit planning process should 

be supported by a fully documented 

audit universe to support a more 

methodical approach to the 

consideration and assessment of 

risk in the development of the 

annual Internal Audit plan. 

 

 

Head of Internal 
Audit 

Agreed and in progress. This 
will be developed fully to 
support the strategic plan 
2020/21 to 2022/23. 
 
 

Linked to 10 above. Audit 
Universe in place and utilised 
since 2020/21, and 
maintained via assurance 
mapping activity.  

 

P
age 41



 

 

 

P
age 42



1 

 

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 

 

ITEM NO.  

 

 
 

REPORT OF: City Solicitor 

 
 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 

ON  

29 September 2021 

 
 
TITLE: Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) – Annual Report    
2020/2021 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Members are requested to: 
  

1) Note the current position in respect of RIPA activity/applications, procedures 

and practice.  
 

 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

This report updates Members of the Audit & Accounts Committee with details of: 
 

- RIPA activity/applications from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 
 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000  
Salford City Council CCTV Code of Practice  

Salford City Council Policy and Procedures 
Anti-Fraud Bribery & Corruption Policy statement  
Anti-Fraud Bribery & Corruption Strategy  

Anti-Bribery Policy  
Whistleblowing Policy  

Anti-Money Laundering Policy  
Anti-Money Laundering Procedures  
Prosecution Searches and Interview Policy  

 

 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



2 

 

KEY DECISION: NO 

 
 

DETAILS: 
   

The City Solicitor is our Senior Responsible Officer (’SRO’) - a statutory role required 
under the Regulation of investigatory Powers Act 2000.  Our Head of Audit is our 
RIPA Monitoring Officer. Following a significant reduction in the use of the RIPA 

framework and a fall to zero directed surveillance authorisations a review of the 
policies and procedures was carried out in 2017.  

 
Since that date, there have been no RIPA applications. There have been no RIPA 
cancelled cases and no ‘not authorised’ cases. Annual returns to IPCO have been 

provided to this effect. 
 

Our RIPA policy has now been reviewed and updated again to cover issues reflecting 
the fact that the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) took over the 
responsibility for oversight of investigatory powers from the Interception of 

Communications Commissioner’s Office (IOCCO) and the Office of Surveillance 
Commissioners (OSC) in September 2017. There are also new RIPA Draft Codes of 

Practice. The draft policy changes have been completed and will be submitted to the 
next meeting of the Audit Committee for comment, prior to Cabinet approval. We can 
also report that all of the recommendations from the IPCO audit last year have been 

complied with and reported back to IPCO accordingly.  
  
The SRO delivered RIPA training to key staff involved in any RIPA activity in 

September 2020. This covered areas including:  
 

- an overview of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000  
- our procedures at Salford City Council 
- different types of surveillance 

- authorising surveillance  
- seeking Magistrates approval 

- non RIPA surveillance 
- a toolkit and information 
- governance and policies 

- human rights 
- the principles of necessity and proportionality 

 
The SRO has identified that it would be good practice to provide further training in 
relation to surveillance of social networking sites and covert human intelligence 

sources (‘CHIS’) and this is in hand. 
 

CHIS is defined as a person who establishes or maintains a personal or other 
relationship with another person for the covert purpose of facilitating anything that: 
 

i) covertly uses such a relationship to obtain information or to provide access to any    
information to another person; or         

ii) covertly discloses information obtained by the use of such a relationship or as a 
consequence of the existence of such a relationship. 

Page 44



3 

 

 
It has become apparent in recent years that for a variety of reasons, which include 
reduced resources, greater access to data-matching and the use of overt rather than 

covert law enforcement activity, authorities like us have granted far fewer RIPA 
authorisations – many authorities are in a similar situation to us and have granted 

none during recent years. 
 
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 
Anti-Fraud & Anti-Corruption Policy Statement  
 

Please also see background documents above 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

If the Council fails to comply with the legislation and regulations, then there are 
reputational risks as well as financial and legal risks. 

 
 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK 

Failure to have appropriate RIPA Policy and Procedures in place along with staff who 
have not been trained properly may lead to the Council not meeting its statutory 

duties, exceeding its powers and facing complaints to the Investigatory Powers 
Tribunal and/or the related risk of legal challenge with its attendant reputational and 
financial consequences.

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Dave Wilcock, City Solicitor  
 

The City Council’s policies such as the Anti-Fraud & Anti-Corruption Policy 

Statement, RIPA Policy and CCTV Code of Practice are adopted and implemented to 
ensure it meets its statutory duties.  

Failure to follow the policies / procedures may result in complaints to the 

Investigatory Powers Tribunal and/or a risk of legal challenge to any evidence, as 
well as reputational and financial risks. 

 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
 

There are no known financial Implications with this report. 
 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  

Page 45



4 

 

There are no known Procurement Implications with this report. 

 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Sam Betts, Assistant Director HR & OD 
 

All workforce related investigations are undertaken by an appropriate manager 
supported by HR and wherever possible, overt (non-secret) investigation techniques 
should be used. The use of covert surveillance for disciplinary investigations will only 

happen where there is no other practical option.  All such investigations comply with 
non-RIPA surveillance policies which are available to staff and managers through the 

Council’s intranet.  

 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Yes 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Dave Wilcock TEL NO:0161 793 3620 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  N/A 

 

Page 46



Audit Progress Report

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 9



2

1. Audit progress
2. National publications

P
age 48



Section 01:
Audit progress

P
age 49



21 September 2021 4

Audit progress

Purpose of this report

This report provides the Audit and Accounts Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors and also includes, at Section 
2, for your information, a summary of recent national reports and publications.  

2019/20 audit

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Limited has confirmed its agreement of the fee variations related to the 2019/20 audit.

2020/21 audit

Our Audit Strategy Memorandum for 2020/21 was presented to the Audit and Accounts Committee on 24 March 2021.

Our progress report in July 2021 confirmed our aim to complete the opinion audit by the end of September 2021 but reported a risk to meeting this timetable. Unfortunately 
we have been unable to complete sufficient audit work to allow us to report the outcomes to this meeting. This is due in part to pressure of work and capacity issues in both 
the council and audit teams and also to delays in responses to requests for information. Particular issues have been encountered in relation to property, plant and 
equipment revaluations, payroll and housing benefit information. We have agreed a deadline for providing all information for the audit of 28 September and are now aiming 
to report to the Audit and Accounts Committee in October 2021. 

We will report on VFM at a later date but within three months of the date of the opinion, in accordance with the revised guidance issued by the NAO.

P
age 50



Section 02:
National publications

P
age 51



21 September 2021 6

National Publications
Publication/update Key points

National Audit Office (NAO)

1. NAO Diversity and Inclusion Annual Report 2020-21 
– July 2021

The  Diversity & Inclusion (D&I) Annual Report 2020-21 focuses on the NAO’s achievements in the final 
year of its previous D&I Strategy 2018-21. 

2. Good practice guidance managing the commercial 
lifecycle – July 2021 

The report summarises good practice guidance managing the commercial lifecycle – including recent 
examinations of commercial activities triggered in response to the global pandemic. 

3.
Climate change risk – A good practice guide for 
Audit and Risk Assurance Committees – August 
2021 

This guide is aimed at helping Audit and Risk Assurance Committees (ARACs) to recognise how climate 
change risks could manifest themselves.

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)

4. Consultation on the local audit framework Seeking views of organisations which form part of the local audit framework.

5. Redmond Review response Methodology for allocating £15 million to local bodies and review of Appointing Person regulations.

Other Relevant Publications 

6. Better Care Fund Policy Framework 2021 to 2022 –
September 2021

The Department of Health & Social Care (DHSC) and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) have published the Better Care Fund (BCF) Policy Framework 2021 to 2022.

P
age 52



7

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA

1. NAO Report: NAO Diversity and Inclusion Annual Report 2020-21 – July 2021

The NAO has published its Diversity & Inclusion (D&I) Annual Report 2020/21 which focuses on the NAO’s achievements in the final year of its previous D&I Strategy 
2018/21. 

This report provides a candid assessment of the NAO’s current position, and the challenges it faces as an organisation in achieving its ambitions to be an exemplar 
employer in D&I. 

Key highlights over the past year include: 
• Developing the NAO race equality and disability equality action plans which form an integral part of the NAO’s new five-year Diversity & Inclusion Strategy, launched in 
June 2021. 
• Improving the diversity of graduate intake and experienced hire programmes, supported by the introduction of new recruitment protocols. 
• Building on the success of the NAO’s internship and work experience programmes, focused on social mobility and ethnicity. 
• Achieving progress against the NAO’s targets for increased representation of women and ethnic minorities at senior levels of the organisation. 
• Implementing the new corporate values, including a value of “inclusion and respect”, integrating this into people processes and developments. 
• Successfully concluding the first diversity mentoring programme, giving leaders a much richer insight into the lives and experiences of colleagues. 
• Publishing the NAO’s first ethnicity pay gap. 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/nao-diversity-and-inclusion-annual-report-2020-21/

P
age 53

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/nao-diversity-and-inclusion-annual-report-2020-21/


8

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA

2.   NAO Report: Good practice guidance managing the commercial lifecycle – July 2021

The NAO has published Good practice guidance managing the commercial lifecycle which reflects upon findings and recommendations drawn from 209 reports concerning 
350 commercial arrangements that it has published over the past 20 years – including recent examinations of commercial activities triggered in response to the global 
pandemic. 

The guidance is presented in 10 sections, addressing both strategic and procedural considerations and supported by case studies from the NAO’s reviews to provide 
relevant context. 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/good-practice-guidance-for-managing-the-commercial-lifecycle/

3.   NAO: Climate change risk – A good practice guide for Audit and Risk Assurance Committees - August 2021

The National Audit Office has produced a guide aimed at helping Audit and Risk Assurance Committees (ARACs) to recognise how climate change risks could manifest 
themselves and which seeks to support them in challenging senior management on their approach to managing climate change risks. Within the guide, the NAO has 
outlined the specific reporting requirements that currently apply. 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/climate-change-risk-a-good-practice-guide-for-audit-and-risk-assurance-committees/

P
age 54

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/good-practice-guidance-for-managing-the-commercial-lifecycle/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/climate-change-risk-a-good-practice-guide-for-audit-and-risk-assurance-committees/


9

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
MHCLG

4. MHCLG Consultation on the local audit framework

On 28 July 2021, the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) issued a technical consultation on proposals aimed at strengthening the local 
audit framework, in response to the Redmond Review. MHCLG is particularly seeking the views of organisations which form part of the local audit framework, including audit 
firms. The consultation includes 24 questions and is open until 22 September 2021. It covers: 

• A new system leader for the local audit framework, proposing that a new regulator, the Audit Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA), take on this role.

• Proposals to strengthen audit committee arrangements within councils.

• Measures to address ongoing capacity issues on the pipeline of local auditors.

• Action to further consider local audit functions for smaller bodies

P
age 55



21 September 2021 10

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
MHCLG

5. MHCLG Redmond Review response

The Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG) announced as part of its response to the Redmond Review, that it would provide £15 million in 
additional funding in 2021/22 towards external audit fees and the development of the proposed new standardised statement of service information and costs.

The department launched a short, four-week consultation, seeking views on the on the methodology for allocating these funds to local bodies.

Running alongside this, the department also launched a separate six-week consultation on the implementation of changes to the fee setting process for principal bodies set 
out in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015.

The consultation primarily sought views on amending the timescale for setting fee scales, enabling the appointing person to consult on and approve a standardised 
additional fee, and for such payments to be made in year rather than at the completion of the audit.

On 29 July 2021, the government published its response to the consultation on changes to the audit fees methodology for allocating £15 million to local bodies to meet the 
anticipated rise in audit fees in 2021/22. The consultation received responses from councils, fire and rescue authorities, local police bodies, national park authorities, audit 
firms and regulatory and accountancy bodies.

On 28 July 2021, the government published the summary of responses from councils, fire and rescue authorities, local police bodies, national park authorities, audit firms 
and regulatory and accountancy bodies, to the consultation on changes to the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015, and its response to the consultation.

The government has subsequently decided to allocate the additional fees based on audited bodies’ existing scale fees.

6. Better Care Fund Policy Framework 2021 to 2022

The Department of Health & Social Care (DHSC) and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) have published the Better Care Fund (BCF) 
Policy Framework 2021 to 2022. This confirms how local authorities and clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) should proceed with finalising plans and pooling agreements 
for funding under the BCF in 2021 to 2022 and sets out the national conditions for the Fund. There will be minimal change to the BCF in 2021 to 2022.

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-care-fund-policy-framework-2021-to-2022/2021-to-2022-better-care-fund-policy-framework

P
age 56

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-care-fund-policy-framework-2021-to-2022/2021-to-2022-better-care-fund-policy-framework


Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

www.mazars.com

Partner: Karen Murray

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

LinkedIn:
www.linkedin.com/company/Mazars
Twitter:
www.twitter.com/MazarsGroup
Facebook:
www.facebook.com/MazarsGroup
Instagram:
www.instagram.com/MazarsGroup
WeChat:
ID: Mazars

Contact Follow us:

Manager: Cath Andrew

Email:  cath.andrew@mazars.co.uk

P
age 57

mailto:gavin.barker@mazars.co.uk
mailto:campbell.dearden@mazars.co.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE CITY SOLICITOR 

 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29th SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
TITLE: GOVERNMENT RESPONSE TO THE REDMOND REVIEW 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
1. That Members note and comment on the report below. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: In June 2019, Sir Tony Redmond was asked by the 

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government to undertake a review of 

the effectiveness of local audit and the transparency of local authority financial 
reporting. His report contained 23 recommendations. The Government subsequently 

provided an initial response to the Review and its recommendations in December 
2020. 

This Committee report provides members with an overview of the background to the 

Redmond Review, the key findings and the recommendations. This report also 
provides and overview of the Government’s response to Sir Tony Redmond’s report 

and the next steps.   

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: N/A 

 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

DETAILS:  

Background to the Redmond Review 

In June 2019, Sir Tony Redmond was asked by the Ministry of Housing, Communities 
and Local Government to undertake a review of the effectiveness of local audit and the 

transparency of local authority financial reporting.  The main driver for the review was 
concern that the local public audit market was not operating effectively following the 
changes brought in by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (“The Act”). 

Page 59

Agenda Item 10



 2 

The Act abolished the Audit Commission and allocated its responsibilities to six 
different bodies: 

 Local Government Association (LGA) – sector improvement and peer challenge 

 PSAA Ltd – set up by the LGA, is the appointing body for 98% of local authority 
audits 

 Comptroller and Auditor General / National Audit Office – sets the Code of Local 
Audit Practice 

 Financial Reporting Council – sets UK accounting standards; quality monitoring for 
larger local authority accounts 

 ICAEW – registration of local authority Key Accounting Partners (those accountants 

with the ability to sign off a local authority’s accounts) 

 CIPFA – sets the Code of Local Accounting Practice and sector specific good 

practice guidance. 

By 2019, the two main concerns about the operation of this model were that: 

 It had not succeeded in its aim of bringing more participants into the local public  
audit market – only eight firms were in the market, with two of these (EY and Grant 
Thornton) being responsible for 70% of local authority audits 

 Local authority accounts had become more complex, particularly in relation to their 
borrowings, investments and financial instruments – largely as a response to 

reduced central funding.   

There were also a number of other concerns related to these two key issues: 

 There was no current “system leader” for local public audits, with oversight of 
procurement, quality and regulation 

 Audits becoming increasingly late in being completed – 40% missed statutory 

deadline 18/19.  Local authorities receiving their Audit Planning reports too late for 
them to act on any risks identified. 

 Number and size of fee variation requests increased – there had been no new risk 
assessment of local authorities in 10 years, so fee size not in line with relative risk 

profiles of local authorities. 

 Audit fees for local authority audits have decreased, but increased in other sectors 
– consequently local public audit has become less attractive for accountants 

(compressed workload, low profitability), leading to a fall in the number of KAPs. 
Concerns from local authorities that auditors lack skills relevant to the new more 

commercial environment, also issues with continuity and visibility of staff.  

 FRC criticised audit firms over their local audit processes, identifying a number of 
significant improvement issues around asset valuations, fraud risk assessments, 

completeness and accuracy of expenditure. 

 Currently no mechanism for individual local authorities to complain about the quality 

of auditor’s service. 

 

Page 60



 3 

Key findings of the Redmond Review 

The Redmond Review sought the views of key stakeholders, including local authorities 
and audit firms. The report, published in September 2020, echoed the issues identified 

above and also came to the following conclusions: 

 Audit work doesn’t really cover the most important areas of the accounts from the 

point of view of the external stakeholders and the public. Local authorities stated 
there was too much emphasis on pensions and asset valuations and not enough 
on systems / internal controls / Value for Money.  There was also scope to make 

greater use of the experience and knowledge of internal auditors. 

 Local authority accounts are overly complicated – legal reporting requirements 

make the Statement of Accounts too complex for anyone to understand properly. 

 No statutory basis for auditors to consider financial resilience – auditors only look 

at the Medium Term Financial Plan if they have identified significant risks in their 
audit. 

 Auditors only review the Annual Governance Statement to ensure consistency with 

the accounts. 

 No requirement for anyone to produce an annual report summarising the work of 

local public auditors. 

The report also contained some findings directly relating to local authorities’ own 
governance arrangements: 

 In some cases, significant governance issues were not being passed on to Full 
Council after having been reported to an Audit Committee. 

 Lack of relevant experience amongst some Audit Committee members enabling 
them properly to challenge audit findings. 

Redmond Review Recommendations  

The report on the Redmond Review contained 23 recommendations relating to: 
external audit regulation; smaller authorities audit regulation; financial resilience of 

local authorities and transparency of financial reporting.  The key recommendations 
were: 

 New regulatory body (the Office of Local Audit and Regulation) to be responsible 
for procurement, contract management, regulation and oversight of local public 

audit (including responsibility for the Code of Practice) – and to hold auditors 
accountable for performance. 

 Formalise engagement between auditors and other inspectorates (e.g. OFSTED , 

CQC), to share relevant findings and identify wider governance failures. 

 Revise the fee structure to ensure adequate resourcing and remove any existing 

statutory barriers for new entrants to the local public audit market. 

 Simplified statement of service information and costs, showing original budgets and 

variations; removal of unnecessary disclosures. 

 Final accounts deadline to be put back to 30 September - Auditors to provide an 
annual report to full Council after this date. 

Page 61



 4 

 Audit committees to have appropriate skills to be able to consider reports – and 
have at least one suitably qualified Independent Member. 

 Internal Audit to be a key support to the Auditor, where consistent with the Code of 

Practice. 

Shortly after the publication of the report, the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) issued 

its first inspection findings into the quality of major local audits. The FRC reviewed 15 
audits across the seven largest audit firms, covering both the financial statement 
opinion and value for money conclusion, and found that 60% required improvement. 

The government response to the review 

The government provided an initial response to the Review and its recommendations 

in December 2020. As part of its response, the government agreed to extend the 
deadline for publishing audited local authority accounts to 30 September for the years 
2020/21 and 2021/22, with the timetable to be reviewed at the end of this period for 

future years. 

The government also committed to providing £15 million to local authorities in 2021/22, 

to reflect anticipated increases in audit fees. It also confirmed that Public Sector Audit 
Appointments will continue as the appointing body for local audit, in charge of 
procurement and contract management for local government auditors.  

The government provided a more detailed response to all of the recommendations in 
May 2021.  In this, the government expressed disagreement with the recommendation 

about the establishment of the Office of Local Audit and Regulation (OLAR), stating 
that it is not its intention to create new arm’s-length bodies.  Instead, it has proposed 
that the responsibilities envisaged to be assigned to the OLAR should instead be taken 

on by the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA), which is the new body 
that is intended to take over the functions of the Financial Reporting Council.  The 

government has proposed establishing a new department within ARGA to take on 
responsibility for local audit-related work, including oversight and inspection. 

The Review identified an “expectations gap” between what auditors are required to do, 

and what local authorities and taxpayers expect, when auditors are assessing the 
financial resilience of local authorities.  The government considers that the new value 

for money requirements in the updated Code of Audit Practice, which include a new 
commentary on governance, arrangements for achieving financial sustainability, and 
improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - should help to address this. 

In response to the concerns about the fragility of the local public audit market, 
government will expect that the next procurement exercise, for audits starting in 

2023/24, will include a strong focus on market development, to support the long-term 
competitiveness and sustainability of the local public audit market.  The exact details 
of this are still to be agreed, but consideration is being given to changing the number 

of contract bidding lots, and adjusting the price:quality ratio used for assessing bids.  

In June 2021, the government ran a consultation on proposed changes to the Local 

Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015, covering the Redmond review 
recommendations relating to the appointment of auditors and the fee-setting 
arrangements.   

In response, the government has committed to introducing secondary legislation to 
amend the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 to: 

Page 62



 5 

 extend the regulatory deadline by which scale fees need to be set to before 30 
November of the financial year to which the scale of fees relates. 

 enable the appointing person to set standardised fee variations for additional work 

that will affect all bodies or groupings of bodies, subject to sufficient evidence, 
research and consultation. 

 provide clarification on the ability of the appointing person (PSAA) to approve 
requests for fee variations during the audit. 

 provide clarification on the ability of the appointing person to appoint an auditor for 
a contract of shorter duration than the compulsory appointing period 

The intention is that the updated regulations will come in force this autumn. 

Next steps 

MHCLG currently have a further consultation open on proposals for the implementation 

of the other recommendations in the Report.  This covers such areas as: 

 The role and powers of the ARGA as the system leader for local public audit, 

including health audits. 

 Assessing whether the new value for money narrative requirement will lead to more 
effective external audit consideration of financial resilience and value for money 

matters. 

 Annual reporting requirements for ARGA on the state of the local public audit 

market, and summarising the results of audits. 

 The continuation of PSAA as the appointing body for audits, with the ability of local 

authorities to opt in to the procurement arrangement. 

 Updating the CIPFA document Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities, particularly in the areas covering: requirements for independent 

members; knowledge, expertise and training; interacting with Full Council and 
raising the profile of the Audit Committee.   

 Auditors reporting findings to Full Council, with the Audit Committee reporting on 
its responses to the auditor’s findings. 

We will report back to Audit and Corporate Governance Committee in due course on 

the outcome of this consultation.  

A recent Public Accounts Committee Report on “Local auditor reporting on local 

government in England” has expressed concern that the proposed ARGA will not be 
set up until 2023 at the earliest, raising the risk that measures to improve the “current 
failings in the market for auditing local authorities” will not be implemented in a timely 

manner. The Committee has requested that MHCLG report back to it by September 
2021, setting out how it intends to address these issues in the period before the ARGA 

is operational. 

Conclusion 

The implementation of the Redmond Review recommendations is intended to deliver 

a step change in the local public audit market, with the aim of delivering timely, quality 
audits to improve accountability to taxpayers and other council stakeholders.  We will 

Page 63



 6 

provide the Audit and Accounts Committee with regular updates on progress with the 
recommendations at key stages in the next two years. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: None noted 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: None noted 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

An effective and timely audit process is key to providing assurance to local tax payers 

and other stakeholders that the council is managing public money effectively and 
efficiently.  A lack of adequate capacity within the audit market increases the risk of 

councils’ accounts not being audited within statutory timescales. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Nicky Smith, Senior Solicitor 

Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires an authority 

to conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control and prepare an annual governance statement. To assist authorities in 

2020/21, CIPFA has produced a summary that incorporates the essential elements of 
an AGS, which the Council has taken into account in preparing this. As explained in 
the report, the Committee will be updated with regard to any changes brought into 

force following the Redmond Review, including any secondary legislation on which  
Legal can provide any guidance as necessary.   

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Chris Hesketh, Head of Financial 

Management 

The Government recognises that there will be an impact on fees charged by external 
auditors. It has committed to distributing £15m to local authorities in 2021/22, in 
proportion to current scale fees paid. We await further details. It is not yet clear what 

compensation might be distributed after 2021/22. The impact of the Government’s 
further consultation, reported on in “next steps” in the report, will be evaluated in due 

course. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  N/A 

There are no known procurement implications with this report. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  N/A 

There are no known HR implications with this report. 
 

Page 64



 7 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: All Service Group Strategic Directors and 

Corporate Management Team. 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: Simon Bleckly  TEL NO: 01925 442217 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A 
 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Updated 21.09.21 

 
Audit and Accounts Committee  

Work Programme 
2021/22 

 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS 

Meeting Date 

 

Agenda Items Responsible officer (s) 

23 June 2021 1. Annual Report of the Chair 
2. Annual Report of the Head of Internal Audit 

3. 2020-21 End of Year Strategic Risk Register update (end of year update 

presented in June every year)  
4. Strategic Risk Register 
5. Code of Corporate Governance deferred to July 
6. Counter Fraud Bribery and Corruption Annual Report 
7. Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2021/22 
8. Internal Audit Progress Report 

9. Part 2 – current investigations update 
10.  

Chair/Simon Bleckly 

Monitoring Officer/Simon Bleckly 

/Jacquie Russell 

Monitoring Officer/Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

David Smith 

Shoaib Mohammad 

David Smith 

21 28 30 July 
2021 

1. Code of Corporate Governance (deferred from June) 
2. Draft Annual Governance Statement  
3. Draft Statement of Accounts  
4.Urban Vision Transition – 12 month review (deferred from June) 

5. 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register (following presentation of new Risk  Register, a 

half-year and end of year progress update will be presented in October 2021 and June 
2022. In between these reports ad hoc requests on risks can be presented to the 
Committee if required). 

6. Risk Management Strategy update (following this review of the Strategy, reviews 
will be presented every two years, in March) 

7.. RIPA Annual Report deferred to September 
8. External Auditors: 

 Audit Committee Update and External Audit Fee Letter 

 Going concern report 
9. Part 2 – current investigations update 

Dave Wilcock/ Simon Bleckly 

Dave Wilcock/ Simon Bleckly 

Joanne Hardman 

Shoaib Mohammad 

Emma Reid/Jacquie Russell 

 

Dave Wilcock 

 

Mazars 

 

David Smith 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 11



Updated 21.09.21 

22 29 September 
2021 

1. Annual Governance Statement – moved to October 
2. Audited Statement of Accounts – moved to October 
3. Internal Audit Charter 
4. Internal Audit Quality and Improvement Programme 
5. RIPA Report (deferred from July) 
6. External Auditors Update  
7. Government response to the Redmond Review 
 

Monitoring Officer/Simon Bleckly 

Joanne Hardman 

Monitoring Officer/ Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

Dave Wilcock 

Mazars 

Simon Bleckly 
20 27 October 
2021 

1. Self Assessment Exercise Actee TOR (check ing date for inclusion) 

2. Private meeting for committee with External Auditors 
3. Annual Governance Statement (for signing off) 
4. Audited Statement of Accounts 
5. External Auditors - Audit Committee Updates and Annual Audit Letter  
6. External Audit Contract Procurement 
7. Internal Audit Progress Report 
8. Counter Fraud Bribery and Corruption update report 
9. The effectiveness of the distribution of Covid Grants/Loans and impact of Covid 

on the Council Budget  
10. Part 2 – current investigations update 

David Smith 

Mazars 

Joanne Hardman 

Dave Wilcock/Simon Bleckly 

Mazars 

Joanne Hardman 

Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

 

 

David Smith 
19 26 January 
2022 
 

 

 

1. Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee  (How the Committee adds 
value to the Council) – Training Session 

2. Private meeting for committee with Internal Auditors 
3. Report on proposed budget savings.   

4. 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register Update 
5. Public Interests Report 
6. External Auditors -  Audit Committee Progress Update  
7. Internal Audit Progress Report (to include the annual Schools Audit Report) 
8. Annual Audit Letter 
9. Standards in Public Life Report 
10. Part 2 – Current investigations update 

 

Simon Bleckly 

Mazars 

Joanne Hardman 

Interim Head of Planning and 

Performance (tbc)/Jacquie Russell 

David Smith 

Joanne Hardman 

Mazars 

Monitoring Officer/Simon Bleckly 

David Smith 

P
age 68



Updated 21.09.21 

16 23 March 2022 1. Self Assessment Exercise 
2. Audit and Accounts Committee Terms of Reference  
3. External Auditors - Audit Committee Update, Grants Certification Letter and 

Audit Plan  
4. Internal Audit Strategy and Draft Internal Audit Plan  
5. Internal Audit Progress Report  
6. Report on the Effectiveness of Internal Audit 
7. Part 2 – current investigations update 

Simon Bleckly 

 

Mazars 

 

Simon Bleckly 

David Smith 

Simon Bleckly 

David Smith 
 Abeyance List  
 Introduction to the use of RIPA   
 CIPFA Training -role of the Audit Committee   
 Risk Management and the Assurance Framework – Training Session   
 Apprenticeship Levy Update  
Councillors (8) 

 Robin Garrido (c) 

 Roger Jones 

 Mike Pevitt 

 Gina Reynolds 

 Alexis Shama 

 Phil Tresadern 

 Ray Walker 

 John Walsh 

 

Co-opted Members (2) 

Vittoria Bugana (01.06.20 – 31.05.23) 
Edoardo Bucci (21.10.20 – 20.10.23) 

 

Invitee 

 Councillor Bill Hinds - Lead Member for Finance & Support Services  

 

Quorum - 3 (Members)  

 

Officers 

David Wilcock –  Interim City Solicitor 

Peter Openshaw – Acting Strategic Director for Place 

Simon Bleckly – Head of Internal Audit (from April 2021) 

Joanne Hardman - Chief Finance Officer 

David Smith - Internal Audit Manager 

Chris Hesketh - Head of Financial Management 

Tony Thompstone - Strategic Finance Manager 

 

Cath Andrews – Mazars  

Karen Murray - Mazars 

 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the previous meeting.
	6 Internal Audit Charter
	7 Internal Audit Quality and Improvement Programme
	8 RIPA Annual Report
	9 External Auditors Update
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11

	10 Government Response to the Redmond Review
	11 Work Programme

